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Course of Conduct 

4. From approximately mid-2015 through at least May 2018, Respondents used, in their 
form contracts offered to customers in the course of selling their services, the following 
provision: 

CONFIDENTIALITY / NON DISPARAGEMENT – I agree not to call Animal 
Control or any governmental agency or individuals if there is a discrepancy to 
how the horses/ animals or property are taken care of.  You will be charged a 
minimum of $5000.00 in damages if you report anything or making contact with 
any persons or agency or by having another individuals(s) do it on your behalf.  
You will be held responsible for all fines that occur which includes but not limited 
to court, our legal representation, and fines.  I agree to our non-disparagement and 
protection of reputation clause.  For purposes of this Section, “disparage” shall 
mean any negative statement, whether written or oral including social media 
about our Company, Volunteers, Owners, Representatives, etc.  For every 
violation, the rider will be charged a fine.  The only allowance for a less than a 5 
star review is through our own review system PeekPro.  The Rider agrees and 
acknowledges that this non-disparagement provision is a material term of this 
Agreement, the absence of which would have resulted in the Company refusing to 
enter into this Agreement.  I agree to not disclose by any means whatsoever the 
terms and conditions of this agreement to any person, group, or entity of any kind 
whatsoever.  For every violation, I will be charged a $5,000.00 fine per negative 
review.  If I bring forth a lawsuit, mediation, arbitration, or any legal action, I will 
pay the STABLE $20,000.00 at time of initiation, $20,000.00 during, and $20,000 
after the resolution. 
 

A copy of the LVTR “Release and Waiver of Liability, Assumption of Risk and Indemnification 
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enforcement authority under the CRFA applies to contracts in effect on or after December 14, 
2017.  15 U.S.C. § 45b(i)(2). 

 

 

 

 

7. Pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 45b(d)(1), a violation of 15 U.S.C. § 45b(c) shall be treated as a 
violation of a rule defining an unfair or deceptive act or practice prescribed under Section 
18(a)(1)(B) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 57a(a)(1)(B).  

Count I 

8. As described in Paragraph 4 of this Complaint, Respondents have offered, in the course 
of selling their services, form contracts, as that term is defined in 15 U.S.C. § 45b(a)(3), that 
contained a provision made void by 15 U.S.C. § 45b(b)(1).   

9. Therefore, the acts and practices set forth in Paragraph 4 of this Complaint occurring on 
or after March 14, 2017 violated Section 2(c) of the CRFA, 15 U.S.C. § 45b(c). 

 
 THEREFORE, the Federal Trade Commission this ____ day of _______, 2019, has 
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